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O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ng
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MVSHA) , Docket Nos. Assessnent Control
PETI TI ONER
PI KE 79-42-P  15-14315- 02012V
V. Stone No. 7 M ne
EASTERN COAL CORPORATI ON, PI KE 79-43-P  15-04316- 02013V
RESPONDENT Stone No. 8 M ne

DECI SI ON APPROVI NG SETTLEMENT

Counsel for the Mne Safety and Health Administration filed
on Cctober 22, 1979, in the above-entitled proceeding notions for
approval of settlements. Under the settlenment agreenment reached
by the parties in Docket No. PIKE 79-42-P, respondent has agreed
to pay civil penalties totaling $30,000 instead of the penalties
totaling $77,000 proposed by the Assessment Office. Under the
settl enent agreenent reached by the parties in Docket No. PIKE
79-43-P, respondent has agreed to pay a civil penalty of $3,000
instead of the penalty of $10, 000 proposed by the Assessnent
Ofice. The Assessnent Ofice arrived at its proposed penalties
in both dockets by waiving the fornmula provided for in 30 CFR
100. 3 and naking findings with respect to the six criteria set
forth in Section 110(i) of the Federal Mne Safety and Health Act
of 1977. Al of the nine violations involved in this proceedi ng
are based on orders of w thdrawal witten under the unwarrantable
failure provisions of Section 104(c)(2) of the Federal Coal M ne
Heal th and Safety Act of 1969. The Assessnent O fice determ ned
that exorbitant penalties of $10,000 shoul d be assessed for eight
of the alleged violations and and that a penalty of $7,000 should
be assessed for the ninth alleged violation. As will hereinafter
be shown, respondent's agreenent to pay a total of $33,000 in
bot h dockets instead of the $87,000 proposed by the Assessnent
Ofice is an appropriate settlement which shoul d be approved.

Ceneral findings with respect to four of the six criteria
can be made and those findings will be considered to be
applicable for determ ning penalties with respect to all nine of
the alleged violations. The remaining two criteria, nanely, the
negl i gence and gravity associated with the alleged violations,
shoul d be specifically considered with respect to each all eged
vi ol ati on. Respondent denonstrated a good faith effort to achieve
rapid conpliance with respect to all of the orders of w thdrawal
because the violations cited in the nine orders were abated on
the sane day the orders were witten with respect to seven orders
and the violations cited in the remaining two orders were abated
by the next day after the orders were witten. The conputer
printouts acconpanying the notions for approval of settlenent
show t hat respondent is controlled by the Pittston Conpany. On
the basis of that information, | find that respondent is a |large
oper at or
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and that penalties should be assessed in an upper range of
magni t ude i nsofar as they are based on the criterion of the size
of respondent's business. Since there are no data in the file
showi ng otherwise, |I find that paynent of penalties will not
cause respondent to discontinue in business. The computer
printouts show that respondent has a significant history of
previous violations and that criterion was taken into
consideration by the parties in arriving at the |large penalties
whi ch respondent has agreed to pay in settling the two cases

i nvol ved in this proceedi ng.

Docket No. PIKE 79-42-P

Order No. 1 RHH (6-28) dated August 19, 1976, cited
respondent for a violation of Section 75.400 because oil, grease,
| oose coal, and coal dust had been allowed to accunul ate on the
conti nuous-m ni ng machi ne. The Assessnent O fice proposed that a
penal ty of $10,000 be assessed for this alleged violation of
Section 75.400. |In order for a penalty of $10,000 to be
warrant ed, the evidence woul d have to show that | arger
accumul ations than the ones described in the order existed and
there woul d have to be an indication that a very hazardous
ignition source existed, such as a bare wire. Additionally, the
presence of nethane should be shown. Finally, in order to prove
that a violation of Section 75.400 existed, the inspector's
testimony woul d have to satisfy the tests established by the
fornmer Board of M ne Operations Appeals in Ad Ben Coal Co., 8
| BVA 98 (1977), nanely, that the accunl ations had existed for an
unreasonabl e period of tinme and that the operator had failed to
clean themup within a reasonable tinme after becom ng aware of
t he exi stence of the accumul ations or after the operator should
have beconme aware of themif the operator had been duly diligent
in inspecting its equipnent. The fact that the parties agreed to
settle the issues raised with respect to this alleged violation
of Section 75.400 is a fair indication that the inspector would
not have been able to show the existence of all the serious
factors required to sustain the assessnment of a nmaxi mum penalty
of $10,000. Respondent's agreenent to pay a penalty of $3, 000
for accunul ati ons of conbustible naterials on the
conti nuous-m ni ng machine is a reasonable anbunt to pay for the
violation of Section 75.400 alleged in Order No. 1 RHH

Order No. 3 RHH (6-50) dated August 23, 1976, cited a
vi ol ati on of Section 75.518 because the fuse for a water punp had
been bridged over with a piece of copper wire with the result
that the punp was not provided with short circuit or overl oad
protection. The Assessnent O fice proposed that a penalty of
$10, 000 be assessed for this alleged violation of Section 75.518.
| have al ways | ooked upon the bridging of fuses as being a matter
of gross negligence because the person who bridges a fuse knows
that he is destroying the protection against shock and fires
which a fuse is designed to provide. The gravity of the
vi ol ati on, however, depends on whether an actual shock hazard
existed at the tinme the order was witten and on the |ikelihood



that a fire would have occurred. In view of the fact that the
order shows only potential hazards, the degree of gravity
associated with the alleged violation is not so great as to
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warrant assessment of a maxi mum penalty. Therefore, | find that
respondent's agreenent to pay a penalty of $5,000 is reasonable
and shoul d be approved.

Order No. 1 CGW (6-55) dated August 19, 1976, cited
respondent for a violation of Section 75.400 because | oose coal
coal dust, grease, and oil had been allowed to accunul ate on a
conti nuous-m ni ng machi ne. The Assessnent O fice proposed that a
penal ty of $10,000 be assessed for this violation of Section
75.400. Order No. 1 RHH supra, alleged the occurrence of an
identical violation in a different section of the mne at the
same time on the sane day as the instant order was witten. The
observations made with respect to the violation of Section 75.400
cited in Oder No. 1 RHH are equally applicable to the violation
cited in the instant order. There is no explanation in the
noti on for approval of settlement for the fact that respondent
has agreed to pay only $2,000 in settlement of the violation of
Section 75.400 alleged in the instant order, but agreed to pay
$3,000 for settlement of the violation of Section 75.400 all eged
in Oder No. 1 RHH The conditions which existed in one section
of the mine probably were nore hazardous than those which existed
in the other section and I am concluding, in the absence of any
information to the contrary, that the inspector who wote the
prior order would have been able to show greater negligence or
gravity, or both, than the inspector who wote the instant order

In any event, | would not normally assess nore than $2,000 for an
al l eged violation of Section 75.400 when the accumnul ati ons were
cited on a single piece of mning equipnment. Therefore, | find

that respondent's agreenent to pay a penalty of $2,000 for having
a dirty mining machine is reasonabl e and shoul d be accept ed.

Order No. 2 CGW (6-57) was witten on August 19, 1976, and
cited respondent for a violation of Section 75.400 because | oose
coal, coal dust, grease, and oil were allowed to accunul ate on a
roof -bolting machi ne. The accunul ati ons here invol ved are
al l eged to have occurred on the same day and in the sane section
as the accumul ations which were cited on the continuous-m ning
machine in Order No. 1 CGN supra. The existence of
accunul ations on two different pieces of equipnent in the sane
section of the mne on the sane day adds to the hazards to which
respondent's miners woul d have been exposed. Nevertheless, in
t he absence of any showi ng of actual ignition hazards and the
possibility that the inspector would not have been able at a
hearing to prove the elenments constituting a violation of Section
75.400 as they were set forth by the former Board in the A d Ben
case, supra, | find that respondent's agreenent to pay a penalty
of $2,000 for this alleged violation of Section 75.400 is
reasonabl e and shoul d be approved. It should be noted that when
Order No. 2 CGWwas witten, it also alleged the occurrence of
other violations, but the order was subsequently nodified by the
i nspector to allege a violation of only Section 75.400.
Consequently, there is no need for ne to consider in this case
the other violations which were originally cited by the
i nspect or.
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Order No. 1 FIJ (6-92) dated Cctober 12, 1976, cited respondent
for a violation of Section 75.200 because the roof-control plan
was not being conplied with in that the operator of the
cont i nuous-m ni ng machi ne had advanced 4 feet inby pernmanent
support and because the pillar was being split fromboth the side
and the end. The Assessnment O fice proposed that a penalty of
$10, 000 be assessed for this alleged violation of Section 75.200.
Vi ol ations of the roof-control plan are generally the nost

hazardous of all violations because roof falls kill and injure
nmore miners than any ot her single occurrence in underground
mnes. | amwlling to accept respondent's agreenent to pay a

penalty of $4,000 in this instance in the absence of any facts
showi ng that there were broken places in the roof or other signs
i ndicating that the roof was in i medi ate danger of falling.

Order No. 2 FIJ (6-94) dated Cctober 12, 1976, cited
respondent for a violation of Section 75.601 because the fuse for
the hoist at the | oading ranp had been bridged over with wire.
The conments made with respect to Order No. 3 RHH, supra, apply
to the violation of Section 75.601 alleged in the instant order
Respondent has agreed to pay $5,000 for this alleged violation in
lieu of the penalty of $10,000 proposed by the Assessnment O fice.
In both instances, respondent has agreed to pay a penalty of
$5, 000 whi ch shoul d be approved on the basis of the conments
whi ch have al ready been nmade in considering Order No. 3 RHH
above.

Order No. 3 FIJ (6-96) dated Cctober 12, 1976, cited
respondent for a violation of Section 75.701-3 because the
roof -bol ti ng machi ne had not been provided with a frame ground in
that the frame ground wire was di sconnected in two poorly nade
tenmporary splices and was di sconnected in the cable reel. The
primary hazard to which mners are exposed by the nonexi stence of
a frame ground is electrocution. The Assessnent O fice proposed
that a penalty of $10,000 be assessed for this alleged violation
There are no facts in the file which show that the floor in the
vicinity of the roof-bolting nmachine was danp or that there were
bare wires which would al nost certainly have exposed the niners
to electrocution. In the absence of specific facts show ng that
the all eged violation was extrenely grave, | find that
respondent's agreenent to pay a penalty of $4,000, instead of the
penal ty of $10,000 proposed by the Assessnent O fice, should be
appr oved.

Order No. 1 FIJ (6-112) dated Cctober 27, 1976, cited
respondent for a violation of Section 75.301 because a vol une of
only 6,375 cubic feet of air per mnute was reaching the | ast
open crosscut instead of the m ninumvol une of 9,000 cubic feet
per mnute required by Section 75.301. The Assessment O fice
proposed that a penalty of $7,000 be assessed for this alleged
violation. The fact that respondent was providing over 2/3 of the
requi red volunme of air would not have made the circunstances
associated with this violation serious enough and woul d not have
i nvol ved enough negligence, to warrant a proposed penalty of



$7, 000 unl ess there had been in existence a conbustible
concentration of methane. In the absence of
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any factors showing that the violation was unusual |y hazardous,
respondent's agreenent to pay a penalty of $5,000, instead of the
$7,000 proposed by the Assessnent Office, is reasonable and
shoul d be approved.

Docket No. PIKE 79-43-P

Oder No. 1 FIJ (7-31) dated May 2, 1977, cited respondent
for a violation of Section 75.200 because respondent was not
conmplying with the provisions of its roof control plan in that
roadway posts were not being set, the proper sequence of m ning
was not being followed, and reflectorized devices were not being
used to warn mners of the existence of unsupported roof. The
comment s whi ch have been nade above in considering Order No. 1
FI'J (6-92) in Docket No. PIKE 79-42-P are applicable to the
instant order. The Assessnent O fice proposed that a penalty of
$10, 000 be assessed for this violation. The fact that the
operator of the continuous-m ning machi ne had advanced 4 feet
i nby permanent support nakes the violation of Section 75.200
alleged in Order No. 1 FIJ (6-92) nore serious than the violation
of Section 75.200 alleged in the instant order and justifies
respondent's agreement to pay $3,000 for the violation of Section
75.200 alleged in the instant order in lieu of the paynent of
$4, 000 agreed upon with respect to the violation of Section
75.200 alleged in Oder No. 1 FIJ (6-92), supra. Therefore,
respondent's agreenent to pay a penalty of $3,000 should be
appr oved.

VWHEREFORE, it is ordered:

(A) For the reasons herei nbefore given, the notion for
approval of settlement is granted and the settlenent agreenent is
appr oved.

(B) Pursuant to the settlenment agreenment, Eastern Coal
Corporation, shall, within 30 days fromthe date of this
decision, pay civil penalties totaling $33,000 which are
allocated to the respective alleged violations as foll ows:

Docket No. PIKE 79-42-P

Oder No. 1 RHH (6-28) 8/19/76 075.400 ................ $ 3,000.00
O der No. 3 RHH (6-50) 8/23/76 075.518 ................ 5, 000. 00
Oder No. 1 CGWN(6-55) 8/19/76 075.400 ................ 2, 000. 00
Oder No. 2 COGWN(6-57) 8/19/76 075.400 ................ 2, 000. 00
Oder No. 1 FIJ (6-92) 10/12/76 075.200 ............... 4, 000. 00
Oder No. 2 FIJ (6-94) 10/12/76 O075.601 ............... 5, 000. 00
Oder No. 3 FIJ (6-96) 10/12/76 O075.701-3 ............. 4, 000. 00
Oder No. 1 FIJ (6-112) 10/27/76 075.301 .............. 5, 000. 00

Total Settlenent Penalties in Docket No.
PIlKE 79-42-P ... $ 30, 000. 00
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Docket No. PIKE 79-43-P

Oder No. 1 FIJ (7-31) 5/2/77 O75.200 ...............

Total Settlenent Penalties in Docket

No. PIKE 79-43-P . ... .. .. .

Total Settlement Penalties in This Proceeding .....

Richard C. Steffey

Admi ni strative Law Judge

$ 3,000.00

3, 000. 00

$ 33, 000. 00



